ALASKA STATE LEG SLATURE
HOUSE RESOQURCES STANDI NG COWM TTEE
May 2, 2005
1:48 p.m

VEMBERS PRESENT

Representative Jay Ranras, Co-Chair
Represent ati ve Ral ph Samuel s, Co-Chair
Representative JimElKkins
Representative Carl Gatto
Representative Gabriell e LeDoux
Representative Kurt O son

Represent ati ve Paul Seaton
Representative Harry Crawford
Representative Mary Kapsner

MEMBERS ABSENT
Al l nmenbers present
COMWM TTEE CALENDAR

HOUSE BI LL NO 254

"An Act directing the Alaska Natural Gas Devel opnment Authority
to use noney appropriated fromthe Railbelt energy fund and from
ot her sources for prelimnary engineering and related work for
the construction of pipeline facilities to transport Al aska
North Sl ope natural gas to the Southcentral Al aska gas
distribution grid, and anending the definition of 'project' as
applied to the work of the Alaska Natural Gas Devel opnent
Aut hority; and providing for an effective date."

- MOVED HB 254 QUT OF COW TTEE
HOUSE BI LL NO. 280
"An Act relating to the taxation of mning property; relating to
contracts approved by nmunicipalities for paynents in lieu of
taxes; and providing for an effective date.”

- MOVED CSHB 280( RES) QUT OF COW TTEE

HOUSE JO NT RESCLUTI ON NO. 17
Qpposi ng the Federal Lands Recreati on Enhancenent Act.

- MOVED HIR 17 QUT OF COW TTEE

HOUSE RES COW TTEE -1- May 2, 2005



HOUSE CONCURRENT RESCLUTI ON NO. 13

Expressing the |egislature's support for the construction of a
nat ural gas spur pipeline between Fairbanks and the Nenana Basin
and Sout hcentral Al aska, comrending the interest and initiative
of the sponsors of that project, and encouragi ng the appropriate
state resource agencies to |lend support to those efforts.

- MOVED CSHCR 13(RES) QUT OF COW TTEE

SENATE JO NT RESOLUTI ON NO. 16

Supporting legislation before the United States Congress that
reaffirms the right of the states to regulate hunting and
fi shing.

- MOVED SJR 16 QUT OF COW TTEE
PREVI QUS COW TTEE ACTI ON
BILL: HB 254

SHORT TITLE: NAT. GAS SPUR LI NE AND DI STRI BUTI ON GRI D
SPONSOR(s): REPRESENTATI VE(s) ROKEBERG

04/ 05/ 05 (H READ THE FI RST Tl ME - REFERRALS

04/ 05/ 05 (H &G RES, FIN

04/ 21/ 05 (H O&G AT 5: 00 PM CAPI TOL 124

04/ 21/ 05 (H -- Meeting Postponed to 4/26/05 --

04/ 26/ 05 (H 0&G AT 5: 00 PM CAPI TOL 124

04/ 26/ 05 (H Bills Previously Heard/ Schedul ed

04/ 28/ 05 (H) 0&G AT 5: 00 PM CAPI TOL 124

04/ 28/ 05 (H Moved Qut of Conmittee

04/ 28/ 05 (H M NUTE( O&G)

04/ 29/ 05 (H) 0%G RPT 2DP 5NR

04/ 29/ 05 (H DP: MCGUI RE, ROKEBERG

04/ 29/ 05 (H NR: KERTTULA, GARDNER, SAMUELS,
DAHLSTROM KOHRI NG

05/ 02/ 05 (H RES AT 1: 00 PM CAPI TOL 124

BILL: HB 280

SHORT TI TLE:. M NERALS TAX/ PAYMENTS TO MUNI'S I N LI EU
SPONSOR(s): RESOURCES

04/ 19/ 05 (H) READ THE FIRST TIME - REFERRALS
04/ 19/ 05 (H) RES, FIN
05/ 02/ 05 (H) RES AT 1: 00 PM CAPI TOL 124

BILL: HIR 17
SHORT TI TLE: FEDERAL LANDS RECREATI ON ENHANCEMENT ACT

HOUSE RES COW TTEE - 2- May 2, 2005



SPONSOR(s): REPRESENTATI VE(s) ELKI NS

04/ 05/ 05 (H) READ THE FI RST TI ME - REFERRALS
04/ 05/ 05 (H) RES
05/ 02/ 05 (H) RES AT 1: 00 PM CAPI TOL 124

BILL: HCR 13
SHORT TITLE: NATURAL GAS SPUR LI NE CONSTRUCTI ON
SPONSOR(s): REPRESENTATI VE(s) RAMRAS

04/ 28/ 05 (H) READ THE FIRST TIME - REFERRALS
04/ 28/ 05 (H) RES
05/ 02/ 05 (H) RES AT 1: 00 PM CAPI TOL 124

BILL: SJR 16
SHORT TI TLE: STATES RI GHT TO REGULATE HUNTI NG FI SHI NG
SPONSOR(s): SENATOR(s) THERRI AULT

03/ 21/ 05 (S) READ THE FIRST TIME - REFERRALS

03/ 21/ 05 (S) RES

04/ 04/ 05 (S) RES AT 3:30 PM BUTROVI CH 205

04/ 04/ 05 (S) Moved SJR 16 Qut of Conmittee

04/ 04/ 05 (S) M NUTE( RES)

04/ 05/ 05 (S) RES RPT 5DP 2NR

04/ 05/ 05 (S) DP: WAGONER, DYSON, SEEKINS, STEDMAN,
STEVENS B

04/ 05/ 05 (S) NR. GUESS, ELTON

04/ 22/ 05 (S) TRANSM TTED TO (H)

04/ 22/ 05 (S) VERSI ON: SJR 16

04/ 25/ 05 (H READ THE FIRST TIME - REFERRALS

04/ 25/ 05 (H RES

05/ 02/ 05 (H RES AT 1: 00 PM CAPI TOL 124

W TNESS REG STER

REPRESENTATI VE NORVAN ROKEBERG

Al aska State Legislature

Juneau, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified as the sponsor of HB 254.

HAROLD HEI NZE, Chi ef Executive Oficer

Al aska Natural Gas Devel opnent Authority

Anchor age, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified that ANGDA views HB 254 and its
acconpanyi ng appropriation as a way to provide an additional

HOUSE RES COW TTEE - 3- May 2, 2005



funding source to look at other opportunities if necessary and
testified in support of HCR 13.

WARREN KEOGH

Chi ckal oon, Al aska

POSI TI ON  STATEMENT: During hearing on HB 254, expressed
concerns.

JI M POUND, Staff

to Representative Jay Ranras

Al aska State Legislature

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Presented HB 280 and HCR 13 on behalf of
Represent ati ve Ranras, sponsor.

CATHY WASSERVAN

Al aska Muni ci pal League

Juneau, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in opposition to the original HB
280, and had questions about the comm ttee substitute.

STEVE VAN SANT, State Assessor

Di vision of Comunity Advocacy

Departnent of Comrerce, Community and Econom c Devel opnent
Anchor age, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Answer ed questions regardi ng HB 280.

STEVE BORELL, Executive Director

Al aska M ners Associ ation

Anchor age, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in support of HB 280.

JAMES FUGUE

Donlin Creek m ne

Counci | of Al aska Producers

Anchor age, Al aska

POSI TI ON  STATEMENT: Characterized HB 280 as bringing about
certainty to the tax structure in the unorgani zed borough.

BRETT FRI ED, Econom st

Departnent of Revenue

Juneau, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Answer ed questions regardi ng HB 280.

JENNI FER BAXTER, Staff

to Representative JimElkins
Al aska State Legislature

HOUSE RES COW TTEE -4- May 2, 2005



POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Presented HIR 17 on behal f of Representative
Ji m El ki ns, sponsor.

DAVI D STANCLI FF, St aff

to Senator Gene Therriault

Al aska State Legislature

Juneau, Al aska

PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Presented SJR 13 on behalf of Senator
Therriault, sponsor.

ACTI ON NARRATI VE

COCHAIR RALPH SAMUJELS called the House Resources Standing

Commttee mneeting to order at 1:48:33 PM Represent ati ves
El ki ns, Kapsner, Sanuels, Seaton and Gatto were present at the
call to order. Representative Ranras, LeDoux, Crawford, and

O son arrived as the neeting was in process.

HB 254- NAT. GAS SPUR LI NE AND DI STRI BUTI ON GRI D

REPRESENTATI VE  NORVAN  ROKEBERG Alaska State Legislature,
Juneau, said HB 254 is a grubstake bill, and it expands the
scope of work for the Al aska Natural Gas Devel opnent Authority
(ANGDA). There is a conpanion bill to provide an additional $8
mllion to ANGDA to study spur line projects, he said, and it
provides for the review of a bullet line fromthe North Slope to
Cook Inlet. He added that it |ooks at two other routings. The

governor vetoed $2.5 nillion for funds for the right-of-way
acquisition from dennallen to Matanuska-Susitna, he said. He
stated that the Cook Inlet tribal council, in concert with North
Star LLC, has a $3 nmillion federal grant to review the Parks
H ghway ar ea. "The authority shall agree to cooperate with the
f eder al gr ant ees, so any other noni es that have been
appropriated by the federal governnent to study spur lines, this
bill specifically indicates they would cooperate,” he stated.
"The funding that's in the conpanion appropriation bill comes

from the $28 million railbelt energy fund--$8 mllion of which
goes to ANGDA for the study and $20 nillion for the current
exi sting southern intertie repair and mai ntenance,” he added.

1:53: 23 PM
REPRESENTATI VE ROKEBERG sai d grubstake is an old Al aska concept,
and this issue is so inportant, the Department of Energy has

indicated that by 2012 the Cook Inlet area will not be able to
provi de consuner natural gas no matter what the price.

HOUSE RES COW TTEE - 5- May 2, 2005



REPRESENTATI VE SEATON suggested putting cost recovery in the
title.

REPRESENTATI VE ROKEBERG said titles are for senators and
mnority nenbers to play with. It is not necessary, he added.

1:55: 22 PM

CO CHAI R SAMUELS said the sponsor statenment clarifies HB 254.
1:55:55 PM

REPRESENTATI VE GATTO referred to a news article that stated two

conpanies buy two thirds of Cook Inlet's gas, and if they stop
buying gas, the price will go through the roof. He said if they

keep buying gas, it will run out and the price will go up as
well. He suggested it was a no-wn situation.

REPRESENTATI VE ROKEBERG sai d gas shortages will still be felt in
2012 unless new gas is found. "Even if we shut the plants down,
we're going to still come up short,"” he said.

REPRESENTATI VE GATTO asked how that can be if those two plants
are two thirds of the consunption.

REPRESENTATI VE ROKEBERG answer ed:

The export Ilicense for Conoco Phillips plant goes
t hrough 2009, so if we have a finite anount of gas--
we' ve had new di scoveries on the Kenai. The Kachenak
pipe line that goes down near the N nilchik area,
going toward Honer. And there are sone additiona
fields down there. But I'm not sure, | can't recall
the exact quantities of the discovery ... They are
adding to our stocks, and there are certainly other
potential gas in the Cook Inlet basin area. Thi s

| egi slature, for the |ast decade, has gone out of its
way to try to incent developnent, particularly the

Cook Inlet area. We've had sone success ... this
committee in the last legislature passed a tax credit
bill for gas pipe lines, which has been, | think, was

instrunmental with the Kachemak pipe |ine devel opnent,
whi ch was quite expensive.

REPRESENTATI VE ROKEBERG continued that despite the known
demands, the area could ultimately have a shortage of gas, and

HOUSE RES COW TTEE - 6- May 2, 2005



guestioned how others can be encouraged to explore for gas.
"That's why it is inportant to look at the use of the gas, the
size of the spur line, and ultinmately how we are to use that."
He said there is no question in his mnd that "we have to
absolutely stay conpletely focused on natural gas. Any
di version of alternate/other types of energies will dimnish the
ability to afford and put in a gas pipe line." He added w nd or
coal generation "should absolutely be a policy that should be
di scouraged by the legislature.™

2:00: 25 PM

REPRESENTATI VE ROKEBERG said the legislature should stay on
target and stay on natural gas. To justify the capacity of a
gas line, "we're going to have other green field devel opnents,
from Dow Chenmical to petro-chemcal type utilization. And we
need to make those industrial sites available at tidewater."” He

noted that one of the issues is the price. He said natural gas
pri ces have doubled in the past two years.

2:01: 34 PM

REPRESENTATI VE GATTO asked if the bill is separate from noving
North Sl ope gas to Chicago.

REPRESENTATI VE ROKEBERG said it is a further addition to the

scope of work and routing for a spur line off the Chicago or
Val dez route, because it adds the Parks H ghway Y-off from
Fai rbanks. It also calls for a bullet line fromthe North Sl ope

to Cook Inlet, he added.
2:03: 04 PM

CO CHAIR RAMRAS said he is a big supporter of alternative energy
and wants to recogni ze that conventional hydro-carbon energy can
co-exist with innovative fornms of energy without adding to the
costs. He said he is of the opinion that the port authority's
program is not viable, and he saw a news article today that
underm nes one of the partners in Senpra. He noted the sponsor
statenment suggests the state wll allocate sone of the $8
mllion to a route that he doesn't think is viable, and he asked
Representative Rokeberg if he would accept an anendnent to
delete lines 22-29 on page 3 of the bill

2:04: 54 PM

HOUSE RES COW TTEE -7- May 2, 2005



REPRESENTATI VE ROKEBERG said that would gut the bill. "l share
your concern about the Port Authority,” he noted. The trouble
with deleting the dennallen to Cook Inlet route would be
counter productive, "because even if we had a highway route, you
could go two different ways. | mean in terns of routing
anal ysis, you can cone from even the highway route, you can
come down the Richardson highway to the G en highway and go that
route. O come down the Parks highway, so that debate needs to
t ake place.”

COCHAIR RAMRAS said he neant just line 25 to delete "to
tidewater at a point on Prince WIIiam Sound".

REPRESENTATI VE ROKEBERG said he is very reluctant. The bill
cane from an initiative from the people of Alaska in the
formati on of ANGDA itself, he said. The original charge was an
all-Alaska pipeline from the North Slope to Valdez, he added

and if the highway route falls apart, "we close the door on
ANGDA' s charge to conpete with the Port Authority project.”

2:07: 09 PM

HAROLD HEINZE, Chief Executive Oficer, Alaska Natural Gas
Devel opnent Authority, said the bill provides a nunber of
options. He enphasized that ANGDA has done screening studies of
different routes for getting North Slope gas to Cook Inlet, and
"frankly it is clear that at a screening |level, econonmics are
not going to dictate some of the choices that need to be nmade if

they are made at all." If there is a line going fromthe North
Slope to Valdez, it is logical to look at bringing gas to Cook
Infet from dennallen, he stated. If it goes down the highway

to Chicago, then fromDelta to Cook Inlet via dennallen and or
direct to Cook Inlet are both possible, he said. When | ooki ng
at all the elenents, it is very unclear which is the best route,
he stated, and the bill expands what ANGDA can exam ne.

2:10: 29 PM

MR. HEINZE said ANGDA has |ooked at the bill and its
acconpanyi ng appropriation as a way to provide an additional

funding source to | ook at other opportunities if necessary. He
said it is not necessary now, but it could be in the next few
nonths as negotiations wth the producers end up being
successful or not. "If we were to use this funding, it is our

position that we would do it in the context of intending to
repay, at sonme point, the railbelt energy fund," he said, and
ANGDA wi || not pursue it if it will not be successful.

HOUSE RES COW TTEE - 8- May 2, 2005



2:11:41 PM

WARREN KEOGH, Chickal oon, Alaska, said he is concerned about
ANGDA receiving noney because they spent "about $500,000 in the
past six nonths for contracted services and ANGDA s recent
action, which is a submssion of a right-of-way application to
the Al aska Department of Natural Resources for a 300-foot pipe
line right-of-way from dennallen to Palner.” He questioned
additional state funds because ANGDA has not provided adequate
public notice in public neetings, and its public outreach has

been i nadequate. He said |andowners had no idea the pipeline
was routed through their private property. The spur Iline
engineering report alerts ANGDA to fault Ilines crossing the

route, which require extensive field investigations for proper
design of the pipe line, and M. Keogh said that those field
eval uati ons should be done prior to final route selection. "M
question is why has a route been selected and the right-of-way
application been submitted prior to these recommended field
studies?" He also noted a simlar problemwth fish streans and
wet | ands. He said his comunity will be traversed by 20 mles
of the pipe line, and it was not advised before the route was
selected. Furthernore, ANGDA reported it did public outreach to
the conmmunity, which nerely consisted of talking to one
Chi ckal oon resident who happens to nmnage a natural gas
devel opnent firm The community council passed a resolution to
ask ANGDA to suspend its right-of-way and permt acquisition
process, he said.

2:15:53 PM

MR. KEOGH said ANGDA has noved too hastily and nade sone
m stakes. He understands the urgency and he supported the ANGDA
initiative, but said it would be better to slow down and do
things right before spending $8 mlIlion of railbelt funds.

2:16: 38 PM

REPRESENTATI VE GATTO said, "You did nention that there was no
notification of a pipe line routed dowmn Trunk Road, and ... |
haven't been home for four nonths but |'mcertainly not aware of
any notification to that degree.”

MR. KEOGH said on the joint pipe line office website where the

application is posted, the right-of-way application route is
shown on 20 maps including the routes that cross private |ands.

HOUSE RES COW TTEE - 9- May 2, 2005



He said the right-of-way application is only for state |ands but
it also shows where the route crosses private | ands.

2:17: 52 PM

REPRESENTATI VE GATTO said there are recent issues with power
| ine construction from MEA who received agreenents with property
owners, but this line is scheduled to go through wthout
| andowner approval .

MR. KEOGH said |andowners on the route did not know the pipe
line was intended to go through their property.

2:18:56 PM

REPRESENTATI VE ROKEBERG said he is nystified why M. Keogh is
not supporting this legislation, because it would provide an
alternative to the right-of-way through Chickal oon. "1 guess |
ama little bit baffled,” he said.

MR, KEOGH said when a state entity plans a pipeline route he
woul d expect neani ngful input fromthe inpacted conmmunities. No

matter where it is, "folks along the way need to be well-
apprised and have significant input.” He said the people of
ANGDA mi ght not be aware that Chickaloon has a |and plan. "I'n

the scranble to find the best way to get natural gas out of the
state and along whatever route, [it's inportant] that you pay
cl ose and careful consideration to the interests and needs and
the priorities of the citizens of the local communities,"” he
expl ai ned.

2:20:49 PM

REPRESENTATI VE ROKEBERG said he can't really disagree, "but for
him to oppose legislation that doesn't speak to those issues is
di sappoi nting."

2:21:11 PM

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON noved to report HB 254, version F, out of
commttee with individual recomendations and the acconpanying
fiscal notes.

There being no objection, HB 254 was passed out of committee.

2:21:40 PM

HOUSE RES COW TTEE -10- May 2, 2005



HB 280- M NERALS TAX/ PAYMENTS TO MUNIS IN LI EU

CO CHAI R RAMRAS announced that the next order of business would
be HOUSE BILL NO 280 "An Act relating to the taxation of
m ni ng property; rel ating to contracts approved by
muni ci palities for paynents in lieu of taxes; and providing for
an effective date."

CO CHAIR SAMIJELS noved to adopt CSHB 280, version 24-LS0933\F
Kurtz, as a working docunent.

There being no objection, it was so ordered.

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON asked if the intent was to hold the bill

CO CHAIR RAMRAS said the intent is to get it rolling.

2:23:11 PM

JIM POUND, Staff to Representative Jay Ranras, Alaska State

Legi sl ature, said HB 280 was proposed by the industry to provide
stability to the mning industry, especially in unorganized

bor oughs. It will create a 4-mll property tax on mnes in
unor gani zed boroughs that will go to the state and is suggested
to be wused for education, he said. Under the conmttee
substitute (CS), when a borough "is organized, provided it is
organi zed currently, it wll allow that local nunicipality to
personal property tax the mne at whatever the personal property
tax is that's established within that borough.” If it annexes a
mne, it will nove the personal property tax levy up to be equa
with others in that borough. The bill wll restrict severance

taxes on the actual mnerals being extracted, and the termis 15
years after production begins, then the comunity can levy its
tax. Facilities that the public use will not be taxed, under HB
280, he concl uded.

2:25:43 PM

REPRESENTATI VE KAPSNER asked which mines this is directed at.

MR. POUND said for nowit is for Pogo and Donlin Creek.
REPRESENTATI VE KAPSNER asked the |ife expectancy of the m nes.

MR. POUND said he thinks Pogo is 20 years and Donlin is |onger.

REPRESENTATI VE KAPSNER sai d she thought it was 15 years.

HOUSE RES COW TTEE -11- May 2, 2005



REPRESENTATI VE GATTO noticed that mnes producing |ess than $10
mllion are exenpt, and he asked if a large, new mne wll be
exenpt until the day it produces at that m nimum

MR. POUND said the legislation is witten to help small m nes.

REPRESENTATI VE GATTO repeated his question.

MR POUND said they wll not pay taxes wuntil they start
producing $10 million worth of mnerals.
2:27:31 PM

REPRESENTATI VE LEDOUX said this also applies to boroughs that
al ready are incorporat ed.

MR. POUND said, "It does if they decide to annex a mne."
REPRESENTATI VE LEDOUX said Section 3 says nunicipalities my not
i npose a severance tax other than a tax inposed before January
1, 2006. Suppose they already have a m ne but they don't have a
severance tax, even if they are an organized borough. Can they
i npose a severance tax? she asked.

MR. POUND said only if they inpose it before January 1, 2006.
2:28:20 PM

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON asked about current severance tax rates.

MR. POUND said he didn't know.

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON asked if the bill relates only to persona
and not real property.

MR. POUND said it is real and tangi bl e personal property.

2:29: 24 PM

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON asked, "So the exclusion from taxation or
the ability for the nunicipalities to inpose taxes, up to their

limt, is that on personal property, but they' re excluded from
putting their current rate on real property?”

HOUSE RES COW TTEE -12- May 2, 2005



MR. POUND said nunicipalities should be able to tax the sane way
they tax any business within the borough. The assessnent will
be done by the state, he added.

2: 30: 05 PM

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON asked if a mne within a current borough
wi |l now be assessed by the state.

MR. POUND said in an existing borough a mne wll still be

assessed by the nunicipality, and he gave the exanple of the
Fort Knox m ne in Fairbanks.

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON said the only reduction in tax that
Fai rbanks will see for the Fort Knox mne will be the limtation
on i nposi ng severance taxes.

MR. POUND said that was correct, unless Fairbanks inposes a
severance tax before January.

2:30: 54 PM

CATHY WASSERMAN, Al aska Muni ci pal League (AM.), said she has not
seen the latest copy of HB 280. She thanked the m ning industry

for talking to AWML about it. The nmunicipal |eague was very
concerned about the state making deals with an industry on
taxing that would take place in a potential new borough. She

said she needs to look at the CS and its severance tax addition,
but she is glad that the cap for the new borough was renoved.

2:32: 35 PM

CO CHAIR RAMRAS said he had the same concern as the nmunici pal
| eague. H's North Star Borough has the Fort Knox mine, and the
Pogo mne is 80-90 mles from the borough, and there has been
sone talk of annexing it. He said he is in favor of the self
assessnment tax of 4 mlls where there is no tax now being paid.
He said 6 mlls in an organi zed borough was a concern because a

mne mght go to court to try to lower their existing mll rate
to the 6-mll rate. There is now no nmechanism to use the bil
to get out of taxes, he said. |If a place |ike Pogo mne was at

6 mlls, in the original HB 280 the community of Delta could not
raise it if it annexed it, so it could have ended up |ower than
the other commercial businesses for fifteen years, he said.

2:35: 14 PM

HOUSE RES COW TTEE -13- May 2, 2005



CO CHAIR RAMRAS said those are the concerns that he had while
redrafting the bill, and he asked if AML is nore confortable.

M5. WASSERMAN said it is better but AM wants to | ook over the
severance tax provision. If the mne is annexed into an
organi zed borough, would that mne be paying |ess than another
m ne that was already in the borough, she asked?

CO CHAIR RAMRAS said there shouldn't be any lack of parity
within an borough. He said the concern is precluding the
devel opnment of a mine because a community of 25 people nekes a
borough in order to get the mne to pay for the comunity.

2:36:58 PM

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON asked if M. Wasserman is famliar wth
the Deltana Borough charter conmm ssion and its letter saying the
purpose of the bill is to prevent borough formation.

M5. WASSERMAN said AML has not addressed that issue and focused
on the point that taxes should be a local decision. The letter
has good points that could lead into good di scussions, she said.

2:38: 20 PM

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON asked if the state assessor can comment on
t he Del tana Borough charter conm ssion letter.

STEVE VAN SANT, State Assessor, Division of Comrunity Advocacy,
Department of Comrerce, Comunity, and Econonm c Devel opnent,
Anchorage, said the departnment worked on this bill wth Senator
Therriault w thout any public input. He said he is an assessor
so everything is black and white. He stated that he "l|ooked at
not having one entity shouldering the entire burden for a
community."” "The severance tax issue was an issue," he said

He added that resources are the property of the residents of
Al aska, so if a severance tax is levied, it should be |evied by
the state, and it should be consistent. He said it appears that
sonme communities use the severance tax to hold mnes hostage.
"We nmade recommendati ons based on the good of the state.”

2:40: 55 PM

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON asked M. Van Sant if he is proposing that
fishing communities do the sane with their severance tax.

HOUSE RES COW TTEE -14- May 2, 2005



MR. VAN SANT said the CS is only referring to mnerals. There
are only two comunities that have a severance tax, Kodiak and
Denal i, he stated.

2:41:52 PM
REPRESENTATI VE KAPSNER asked average m || rates.

MR VAN SANT said it is 15.226 in Fairbanks and 6.61 for the
Greens Creek mine in Juneau.

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON said Juneau has a rate of 6.61 for a mne
in a roadless area, and 11.5 if it is within the road system

2:43:48 PM

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON asked if a newmne is limted to 4 mlls,
and then it becane connected to the road system could it
i ncrease?

2:44: 21 PM

MR. VAN SANT said, "If a new borough is forned, they're going to
pay 4 mlls, unless a local property tax is levied. So if they

levy a local property tax ... that's local determnation, the
state has nothing to do with that. I know we have two or three
comunities in the state that have varying mll rates because of
| ack of access to certain services ... It would be up to the

| ocal conmmunity to determne what services they are going to
provi de and whether or not they're going to go with differenti al
tax zones in those areas.”

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON said if the borough had differential mll

rates dependant on services available, under this bill would the
tax structure still be all owed.

MR. VAN SANT said this bill would not touch a tiered mll |evy.
CO- CHAIR RAMRAS said there is a storm around certainty of oil
and gas taxes. He said his understanding is that the mning
industry just wants to bring sonme certainty, and there is "no
devil™ in this CS. He said it is a forthright effort by the
i ndustry who has conme forward with a self-assessnent. He said

the CS brings stability to an industry that we are trying to
nurture al ong.

HOUSE RES COW TTEE -15- May 2, 2005



MR. VAN SANT said he thought the first bill was a problem and
he was incensed. He said it has changed radically, and, the
bill says now "we will pay the sanme taxes everybody else pays."
He said it is good there is an industry willing to pay 4 mlls
where it is paying none now He said, "Mst of those exenptions
that were there in the first place, pretty nmuch exenpted every
tax a municipality could |evy. It doesn't read that way any
nore." He said the property tax will be the sanme as everyone
el se, as well as the fees and excise taxes.

2:49: 01 PM

REPRESENTATI VE LEDOUX asked if a municipality could raise its
mll rate if it already has a severance tax.

MR. VAN SANT said he is not sure, but there are only two
municipalities | evying a severance tax.

REPRESENTATI VE LEDOUX said that the Lake and Pen Borough has a
severance tax.

MR. VAN SANT said they do not to his know edge.
2:50: 15 PM

STEVE BORELL, Executive Director, Alaska Mners Association,
said it is unique when an industry volunteers to pay a new tax.
That tax would be a property tax on large mnes operating in
unor gani zed boroughs only, and it would have a constant rate for
the first 15 years after production, he said. He listed taxes
the industry already pays to the state. In the wunorganized
borough, there is no nmunicipal tax, and this is where the
industry is proposing a new tax, he said. He noted that the
i ndustry often conplains of uncertainty regarding prices, taxes,
and regul ations. This bill renoves the tax wuncertainty, he
cl ai nmed. "Gven the short tinme remaining in this session, we
urge you to pass this bill out of commttee as soon as
possi bl e," he concl uded.

2:53:12 PM

REPRESENTATI VE GATTO asked what the benefits are to the mning
i ndustry.

MR. BORELL said stability. He said a mne mght look like a
cash cow, and conpanies fear investing in the state.

HOUSE RES COW TTEE -16- May 2, 2005



2:55: 08 PM

REPRESENTATIVE KAPSNER said 4 mlls sounds really |ow,
especially since it is over 15 in Fairbanks.

CO CHAI R RAMRAS said to note the mnes that are paying zero now.
REPRESENTATI VE ELKINS said the bill goes to finance next.
2:56: 23 PM

REPRESENTATI VE KAPSNER asked how 4 m|ls was derived.

MR BORELL said it is the school contribution anmount.

REPRESENTATI VE GATTO said, "The 4-m || giveback is based on the
true and real value of personal property throughout the entire
borough, and this would only be four mlls based on the property
of a mning operation providing it had $10 nmillion. That's a
pretty wide distinction, isn't it?"

MR BORELL answered: "If the assessed value is nore than $10
mllion--and the purpose of that was to nmake the assessors job
significantly easier because you don't have to worry about the
nom and pops." He added that right now, the other entities
wi thin the organi zed boroughs pay nothing at all.

REPRESENTATI VE GATTO asked if Delta Junction is considering
i ncor porating.

MR BORELL said it is.

REPRESENTATI VE GATTO said Delta Junction has been extrenely
resistant to incorporating. "What is bringing about this change
of attitude," he asked.

2:58: 59 PM
MR. BORELL said he doesn't know.

JAMES FUGUE, Donlin Creek Project and Council of Alaska
Producers, said this bill is about bringing certainty to the tax
structure in the unorgani zed borough. He said his conpany is
facing an investnent decision with Donlin Creek mne, and wth
an unknown tax structure, it can't refine its investnent nodels.
He noted that the bill has generated inportant dial ogue. He
said mll rates across Al aska are very variable, and for Donlin

HOUSE RES COW TTEE -17- May 2, 2005



Creek, 1 mll on a $1 billion project is $1 million. A $4 mll
property tax would start out at $4 million per annum and a 6
mll property tax would be of the order of $6 mllion, and that
is what the Red Dog m ne is paying, he decl ared.

REPRESENTATI VE KAPSNER asked the |ife expectancy of Donlin.
MR. FUGUE said 15 years is the nunber the conpany uses.
3:.02:23 PM

CO CHAI R RAMRAS asked what the assessed value will be after 15
years if it remai ns unorgani zed.

MR. VAN SANT said after fifteen years this tax goes away if
there is no organi zed nmunicipality.

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON said the bill states there can be no taxes
measured on the gross or net incone from the taxable property,
and he asked if it precludes the state corporate incone tax.

3:03: 58 PM

BRETT FRIED, Econom st, Departnment of Revenue, said he hasn't
had a chance to read the CS.

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON said he also wants to know if the
transportation of mnerals and mning transportation conpanies
woul d be free of taxation. He said he wants to nake sure the
substitution of taxes only includes taxes that would be
authorized by a nunicipality and not taxation by the state.

3:05:46 PM
MR FRI ED said he doesn't know.

COCHAIR SAMJELS said the way he reads the severance tax

provision is that if it exists now, it wll stay. Q her than
that, only the state has that right, he stated. "I agree with
the bill on the whole. Soneone who is going to go in and spend
tens of mllions of dollars, and the |ocal governnent just sits
and waits and waits, till you can't get your nobney back out and
it goes click. It is alnbost a ganme of gotcha, because you
cannot take your equipnent and go anywhere el se.” He said the
anount can be argued, but the state still has the right to

i npose a severance tax, so he thinks it is a good conprom se.

HOUSE RES COW TTEE - 18- May 2, 2005



3:07:20 PM

REPRESENTATI VE ELKINS said there are some unanswered questions,
but this late in the session it should be noved on.

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON said the direction of the CS is good, but
there are questions that need to be answered. He said he wants
to know about taxes inposed before January 1, 2005.

CO CHAIR RAMRAS said the first draft was a Trojan horse with the
devil inside. The references on lines 12-14 relate to the Pogo
and Fort Knox m nes, and any other existing mne operations. "I
did not want an ability for soneone with a Fort Knox to be able
to use this vehicle to go back and skinny their way out of an
existing tax. The date was sel ected because as of now, Pogo is
not in a borough, and Fort Knox already is, so it puts a pivotal
date whereby Pogo is not in a borough and Fort Knox is.

3:10: 04 PM

REPRESENTATI VE LEDOUX said she feels unconfortable with Section
3. People know the mll rate can go up when they buy a house or
a lodge, so the nmunicipality should retain that prerogative.

REPRESENTATI VE GATTO said gravel extracted in his district is
not taxed, and Section 3 takes away the ability to levy a tax on
the gravel after January.

CO CHAIR RAMRAS said the gravel pit land is probably taxed at
the current mll rate.

3:.12: 33 PM

CO CHAI R SAMUELS said the borough has property tax, but if there
isn't a severance tax provision, it wll keep mnes from
entering an unoccupi ed borough. "Once the nmunicipality has it,
and they wish to change the mlIl|l rate, that's up to the people
of that community.” It will affect all property owners equally.
3:.13:30 PM

REPRESENTATI VE LEDOUX said Section 3 relates to the boroughs
that are already organized, so there would be those sorts of
controls.

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON asked if a rate change is precluded on a
severance tax. He wants that question answered. He asked if

HOUSE RES COW TTEE -19- May 2, 2005



the bill only applies to the $10 mllion mnes or on the small
ones.

3:15: 36 PM

CO CHAIR RAMRAS said the intention is to protect "the dad and
the kid that are mning" froma 4-ml| tax

REPRESENTATI VE KAPSNER said she is in favor of the Donlin Creek
m ne but her neighbors wupriver are talking about formng a
borough, and the bill mght preclude that. In order to form a
borough state law requires a 4 mll-school rate and the borough
would need to bond for new schools for the children from the
m ning conmunity. It is also required to provide for roads and
public safety, she explained. Except for this mne, there is no
way to cover those cost, and she said she is concerned about the
upriver people wanting to set taxes, but the bill sets it in
stone for the next 15 years.

COCHAIR RAMRAS said, "It is 4 mlls wuntil a borough is
organized, and if those comunities you're talking about
organi zed a borough, and then they set a mll rate at 10, then
the mne would rise to that mll rate within that area. It
would rise to the prevailing mll rate. That was the difference
between the 280 and the CS for 280; it clarifies precisely
that."

REPRESENTATI VE KAPSNER sai d she was | ooking at the |ast version.

3:20: 47 PM

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON said if he had had the CS earlier, he
woul dn't need to ask so many questions. He said he wants to
address the Pebble mne with regard to page 6, line 20. He said

it looks like property used for transportation of mnerals could
be exenpt fromthe tax.

MR. VAN SANT said, "This is the exact sanme question we asked in
the Senate Community and Regional Affairs Standing Conmttee.
The | anguage changed a little bit, and under this, nothing would
be taxable, so obviously there's a typo here.” He said he
thinks it was neant to say, "that is located in nunicipality
organi zed before January 1, 2005." He said, "Obviously we need
to change this one ... | don't know where it came from"

3:22:32 PM

HOUSE RES COW TTEE - 20- May 2, 2005



REPRESENTATI VE SEATON said with this |anguage, the dock and
transportation facilities for the Pebble m ne wouldn't be taxed.

MR. VAN SANT said the intent is that the facilities open to
public use would be exenpt from this tax, which doesn't need to
be in the bill because the departnment woul dn't assess it anyway.

3:23:37 PM

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON said he would |like a conceptual anendnent
to fix it before it | eaves the committee.

The comm ttee took an at-ease from 3:24 to 3: 25.
3:25: 39 PM

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON offered conceptual Anmendnent 1 to delete
lines 20 - 21 on Page 6.

REPRESENTATI VE CRAWFORD obj ected and asked what that woul d do.

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON expl ained that the CS reads that property
or dock facilities used for transportation and located within a
city or municipality are not taxable, and Amendnent 1 deletes
that |anguage, so that those properties will be assessed just
like all private facilities.

REPRESENTATI VE CRAWFORD wi t hdrew his objection; there being no
further objection, Amendnent 1 carried.

3.27:45 PM

REPRESENTATI VE GATTO requested a clarification on severance
taxes referred to in Section 3, Page 2. If there is a mninal
tax currently inposed, he asked, wIll the municipality be

restricted fromraising it?
3:28: 30 PM

COCHAIR SAMJELS said he reads that a nmunicipality is
grandfathered in if it has a tax, and it can raise it.

REPRESENTATI VE LEDOUX suggest ed asking | egal services.

CO- CHAI R RAVRAS said the House Fi nance Conmittee can do that.

HOUSE RES COW TTEE -21- May 2, 2005



REPRESENTATI VE SEATON said he asked for that question to follow
the bill, so it will be answered in the next committee.

3:.29:29 PM

REPRESENTATI VE KAPSNER noved to report HB 280, |abeled 24-
LS0933\F, Kurtz, 3/2/05 as anended, out of commttee wth
i ndi vi dual recommendati ons and t he acconpanyi ng fiscal notes.

There being no objection, CSHB 280( RES) passed out of conmttee.

3:29: 57 PM
HIR 17- FEDERAL LANDS RECREATI ON ENHANCEMENT ACT

CO- CHAI R RAMRAS announced that the next order of business would
be HOUSE JO NT RESOLUTION NO. 17 Qpposi ng the Federal Lands
Recr eati on Enhancenent Act.

JENNI FER BAXTER, Staff to Representative Jim Elkins, Alaska
State Legislature, said HIR 17 opposes the Federal Lands
Recreati onal Enhancenent Act, which allows the forest service,
park service, bureau of |and managenent, fish and wldlife
servi ce, and bureau of reclamation to charge fees for
recreati onal use of federally managed |and by the public. Once
enacted, fees wll be required to access certain |ands, she
sai d. She noted that the federal governnent manages two thirds
of Alaska lands, and a fee would be regressive and inpose an
undue burden on rural people who use these | ands. She |isted
ot her states that have suggested simlar resolutions.

3:.32: 26 PM

CO CHAIR SAMIJELS said he buys a sticker to go to the Chugach
State Park, so he asked why the federal governnment shouldn't do
t he sane thing.

MS. BAXTER said it would be an additional fee on top of what our
state al ready charges.

CO CHAI R SAMJELS asked if there is a charge now.
MS. BAXTER sai d she doesn't believe so.

CO- CHAIR SAMUELS noved to adopt the commttee substitute (CS)
for HIR 17, | abel ed 24-LS0847\Y, as a work draft.

3:33:36 PM

HOUSE RES COW TTEE -22- May 2, 2005



CO CHAIR SAMUELS asked if a person has to pay to use a federa
park, like to raft in the Arctic National WIdlife Refuge.

M5. BAXTER said, "The National Park Service, right now-one of
our national forests is the Tongass National Forest, and our
state isn't charging access fees, currently, to use certain
lands, and | don't believe that the federal governnent is
charging fees to use, like the national forest service, as far
as in Southeast that | know of."

REPRESENTATI VE LEDOUX asked if the policy in Alaska is
different, because she recalls user fees for Yell owstone.

M5. BAXTER said she doesn't know

REPRESENTATI VE GATTO nentioned the federal governnent's Gol den
Eagl e Pass for national parks.

MS. BAXTER said the federal resolution proposes an annual pass.

REPRESENTATI VE GATTO said HIR 17 tells the governnent not to
charge for the use of federal lands, but it already charges
t hrough the Gol den Eagl e Pass, and he asked if the resolution is
asking for an exenption.

MS. BAXTER said, "I believe that this is an additional fee.
What this resolution would enact, an additional fee to what we
al ready pay the federal governnment for the use of public |lands.”

REPRESENTATI VE ELKINS said this is about all federal |Iands.
"They don't charge you today to go hunting in the Tongass
Nat i onal Forest, but they could.™

3. 36: 56 PM

REPRESENTATI VE LEDOUX asked if the resol ution exenpts parKks.

M5. BAXTER said it includes the National Park Service.
REPRESENTATI VE SEATON said, "W have been trying to get people
that utilize the woods for -- the greenies -- the people that
are using them for other than hunting, and that we've had the
conplaints that only hunters pay for the nmintenance of trails

and all these other things. Is the intent of this to nean that
only hunters wll pay ... through the hunting license fees for

HOUSE RES COW TTEE -23- May 2, 2005



any of the maintenance and everything on all the federal |ands,
recreational |lands in Al aska?

M5. BAXTER asked if Representative Seaton is asking if it is in
addition to fees for a hunting license.

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON clarified that if recreationists aren't
charged, only hunters will pay for federal | ands.

MS. BAXTER sai d, "What these fees would inpose--they say the
federal government would--the tax would go toward that certain
site for mai ntenance, but our city and borough taxes pay for the
facilities and upkeep, as is. So this would be in addition to
what we are already paying for the naintenance of the
facilities. And it wouldn't just be restricted to hunters.”

REPRESENTATIVE ELKINS said his hunting fee never went to
mai ntai n any federal |ands.

3:40: 06 PM

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON said he m sspoke, he didn't mean hunting
| i censes, but duck stanps and federal permts.

REPRESENTATIVE OLSON noved to report HIR 17, |abeled 24-
LS0847\Y, out of commttee with individual recommendations and
t he acconpanying fiscal notes.

There being no objection, CSHIR 17(RES) passed out of conmttee.

HCR 13- NATURAL GAS SPUR LI NE CONSTRUCTI ON

CO CHAI R RAMRAS announced that the next order of business would
be HOUSE CONCURRENT RESOLUTION NO 13 Expressing the
| egi sl ature's support for the construction of a natural gas spur
pi pel i ne between Fairbanks and the Nenana Basin and Sout hcentra
Al aska, comrending the interest and initiative of the sponsors
of that project, and encouraging the appropriate state resource
agencies to |l end support to those efforts.

JIM POUND, Staff to Representative Jay Ranras, Alaska State
Legi slature, said HCR 13 would encourage the devel opnment of the

stranded gas in the Interior. He added that early testing in
the Nenana region indicates there could be as nmuch as 10
trillion cubic feet of natural gas, and if it pans out, it wll
be stranded until a pipeline can be built. He said Fairbanks

woul d have a difficult tinme consum ng that nmuch gas, so the idea

HOUSE RES COW TTEE - 24- May 2, 2005



is for the pipeline to go north and south. He noted that
several conpanies are working on this project, and HCR 13 asks
the resource agencies to work with them

The comm ttee took an at-ease from 3:43:50 PMto 3:43:58 PM

MR. POUND reconmended the follow ng changes: on page 1, line 8,
delete "to 15 trillion" because the actual estimate is only 10
trillion; on Page 2, line 8, insert ", LLC, Usibelli Energy LLC
Arctic Slope Regional Corporation”; and on Page 2, line 9, add

"who have worked together and Enstar has secured partial federal
fundi ng".

3:45:42 PM

HAROLD HEI NZE, Chief Executive Oficer, Al aska Natural Gas
Devel opnent Authority (ANGDA), said he supports the resolution
and has suggestions. He said on line 6 and 9, the word
"reserves" is used, which inplies they are well-known,
di scovered, and found, so he suggests using “"potential
reserves", "resource base", or "reserve base". He said there
are no reserves at this time in the Nenana basin, and the
reserves on the North Slope at nost are 35 trillion cubic feet.
He added that on line 12, page 2, the term "fastest nost
efficient” should not be used because that is unknown.

3:47: 30 PM
REPRESENTATI VE GATTO suggested striking the word "reserves", and
use 35 trillion instead of 100 trillion. He said he will offer

t hat as conceptual Anendnent 1.

REPRESENTATI VE CRAWORD said he objected and offered an

anendnent to conceptual Amendnent 1. He said 100 trillion is
the potential, and he would like to keep it. He said there are
35 trillion cubic feet of reserves, so "take the reserves out

and put resources, and we can say 100."

REPRESENTATI VE GATTO objected to the amendnent to conceptua
Amendnent 1 because the nunber "35" is used extensively, and
anyone could say there is up to 100 mllion, but those are
potential .

REPRESENTATI VE CRAWORD said "Or you can |eave the 'reserves' in

there and say '35, but to take 'reserves' out and just say '35
trillion potential resource' is a msnoner."

HOUSE RES COW TTEE -25- May 2, 2005



3:50: 34 PM

REPRESENTATI VE GATTO said change the '35 and keep 'reserves'.
CO-CHAIR SAMJELS said, "If we use the word 'reserves', we have
to use the '35". If we want to use '100', then we use the word
"resource'."

3:51: 08 PM

REPRESENTATI VE CRAWORD wi thdrew the anendnent to conceptua
Amendnent 1.

REPRESENTATI VE GATTO restated conceptual Anendnent 1 to read
del ete "100" and add "35".

There being no objection, conceptual Amendnent 1 carried.
3:52:32 PM
CO CHAI R SAMUJELS of fered Arendnent 2, as follows:
Page 1, line 8, following "estimted 10"
Delete "to 15"
Page 1, line 9,
Del ete "reserves"
| nsert "resources"
There being no objection, Amendnent 2 carried.

CO- CHAI R RAVRAS of fered Amendnent 3, as foll ows:

Page 2, line 8, follow ng "Andex Resources”
Insert ", LLC, Usibelli Energy, LLC"

Page 2, line 9, follow ng "ENSTAR Natural Gas Conpany”
Del ete ","
Insert "Arctic Slope Regional Corporation”

Page 2, line 9, follow ng "who have"
I nsert "worked"

Page 2, line 9, follow ng "together"
I nsert "and ENSTAR has"”

There being no objection, Amendnent 3 carried.

HOUSE RES COW TTEE - 26- May 2, 2005



3:54:16 PM

REPRESENTATI VE ELKINS noved to report HCR 13, |abeled 24-
LS0943\Y, as anended, out of commttee wth individual
reconmendati ons and the acconpanying fiscal notes.

There being no objection, CSHCR 13(RES) passed out of conmttee.

SJR 16- STATES' RI GHT TO REGULATE HUNTI NG FI SHI NG

CO CHAI R RAMRAS announced that the final order of business would
be SENATE JO NT RESOLUTION NO. 16 Supporting |egislation before
the United States Congress that reaffirms the right of the
states to regulate hunting and fishing.

DAVID STANCLIFF, Staff to Senator Therriault, Alaska State
Legislature, said SIJR 16 goes to the heart of a conflict "that's
existed in Alaska for a nunber of years.” He said over 50
percent of the prime hunting areas have been elimnated in
Al aska through various resource designations. He noted that the
courts told Arizona it couldn't have differential access for
resident and non-resident hunters. The resolution supports two
bills before Congress that clarify that states do have
managenent authority and the right to differentiate between
residents and non-residents. He opined that this 1is not
di visive between rural and urban users, but it is a mtter of
state sovereignty.

3:57:39 PM

REPRESENTATI VE OLSON noved to report SJR 16 out of commttee
with individual recommendati ons and acconpanyi ng fiscal notes.

There being no objection, SIR 16 passed out of committee.
3:58:41 PM

ADJ OQURNMVENT

There being no further business before the commttee, the House
Resources Standing Commttee neeting was adjourned at 3:58 p.m

HOUSE RES COW TTEE -27- May 2, 2005



